From: Tanya Koshy

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 5:17 PM
To:
Subject: Recommendation 87.1

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Acting Captain Altorfer,

Our office has completed its review of the materials related to Recommendation 87.1 that have been submitted to us as
part of the collaborative reform process. After reviewing the package and information provided by the Department, the
California Department of Justice finds as follows:

Recommendation 87.1:

The Background Investigation Unit should continue the process of developing and implementing performance measures
to evaluate the unit's investigators in terms of outcomes such as lengths of investigations, timeliness of investigations,
numbers of contacts with applicants, consistency of investigative approach, and hiring recommendations.

Response to Recommendation 87.1:

To measure background investigators’ performance, SFPD has developed a standardized case status tracker sheet that
tracks various categories of information about each applicant for employment, including the applicant’s name, sex, race,
age, the number of times the background investigator contacted the applicant, the date of last contact, and notes on the
applicant. The case tracker also automatically populates 60 business days after date of the applicant’s interview, which is
SFPD’s internal deadline for the investigator to present their recommendation on an applicant. The column that includes
the 60-day deadline will turn pink and alert the supervisor if an applicant has not been presented within the 60 day
window. The supervisor must enter a passcode, sign off acknowledging that the 60-day window has passed, and take
appropriate remedial action.

The case tracker ensures that investigations proceed in a timely manner, investigators all collect the same categories of
information, and supervisors track how frequently the investigators are keeping in touch with applicants. The guidance
on filling out the case tracker is codified in Unit Order 18-01. SFPD explains in Unit Order 18-01 that frequent contacts
with an applicant is critical to gather information from the applicant, to ensure the applicant is following up on
necessary actions on their part, and to inform the applicant of progress on their

application.

Under Unit Order 21-01, the Background Unit Supervising Sergeant is required to conduct a check-in with the
investigators 30 days after the investigator is assigned to work with the applicant. During this check-in, the Sergeant will
look at the timeliness of the investigation, the number of contacts, and whether the investigation is proceeding in a
manner consistent with the POST Background Investigation Manual. The Lieutenant of Staff Services also conducts a
quarterly audit of the case tracker to ensure that the 30-day check-in and the 60-day deadline are noted.

Each investigator also presents their investigative findings and information about an applicant’s background at what is
referred to as a “Hiring Meeting,” attended by the investigator, the Background Unit Supervising Sergeant, the
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Lieutenant of Staff Services, the Commanding Officer of Staff Services, and a representative of the Law Enforcement
Psychological Services. At this meeting, the attendees make a hiring decision. Following the Hiring Meeting and the
certification of an Academy Recruit Class (consisting of the applicants hired from a Hiring Meeting), the Background Unit
Supervising Sergeant will record and compile the demographics of the candidates presented at the Hiring Meeting and
those candidates that are entering the Academy. The Supervising Sergeant will provide this data to the Staff Services
Senior Administrative Analyst who will input it into a master spreadsheet and then generate a report that summarizes
the race and gender of the entire applicant pool and the people hired to enter the Academy. The report also track the
investigators’ timeliness in investigating each applicant’s background and the investigator’'s recommendations. The
Analyst will provide this report to the Background Unit Supervising Sergeant, as well as the Captain and Lieutenant of
Staff Services for their review. This report is also presented at every quarterly Department Recruiting and Retention
meeting, attended by the Deputy Chief and Commander of the Administration Bureau, Captain and Lieutenant of the
Staff Services Division, the Officer in Charge of the Recruitment and Background Investigations Units, Captain of the
Police Academy, the Officer in Charge of the Field Training Division and the City of San Francisco’s Department of Human
Resources Public Safety Team. SFPD provided an example of this report in the package for Recommendation 87.2.

Based upon all of the above, the Department of Justice finds that SFPD is in substantial compliance with this
recommendation. Please let us know if you have any questions or would like to discuss these further.

Tanya

Tanya S. Koshy (she/her)
Deputy Attorney General
Civil Rights Enforcement Section
California Department of Justice

1515 Clay Street, Suite 2100

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.



Hillard Heintze File Review Recommendation # 87.1

Finding # 87 The Background Investigation Unit lacks valid performance measures to evaluate background

investigators.

Recommendation # 87.1 The Background Investigation Unit should continue the process of developing and implementing
performance measures to evaluate the unit’s investigators in terms of outcomes such as length of
investigations, timeliness of investigations, numbers of contacts with the applicant, consistency of
investigative approach, and hiring recommendations.

Recommendation Status Complete Partially Complete In Progress
Not Started = No Assessment

Summary

The SFPD’s Background Investigations Unit (BIU) has engaged in a review and resulting focus on performance measures
and improved policy to support equitable background investigations.

For compliance measure one, the department relies upon a unit order that was developed to ensure supervision and
review of performance metrics. SFPD developed a standardized case status tracker sheet, which includes applicant
name, hiring list number, sex, race, age, and dates the applicant was contacted for the various steps in the hiring process
such as medical, psych, interview, etc. The tracker sheet also tracks the number of contacts the investigator has had with
the applicant. This ensures visibility into the actions and data used by the department for hiring. This sheet has been
refined over time and includes performance metrics to ensure consistency of the investigative approach and the
timeliness of each investigation.

For compliance measure two, the department has established a unit policy that identifies and addresses the metrics that
are reported in the recommendation. Unit Order 18-01 was promulgated in November 2018 and contains the identified
performance measures. SFPD needs to be cognizant of ensuring this Unit Order remains active and up to date pursuant
to SFPD'’s policy guidelines.

For compliance measure three, the Background Investigations Unit (BIU) implemented a tracker that identifies the
progression of the background investigation, in alignment with the identified performance measures. This report is
reviewed by supervisors. The record is light as to the actual use of the measures - how are officers held to account as
the measures are or are not met? However, the department identifies how supervisors are notified for timing delays and,
presumably, review and take action to address.

For compliance measure four, the department identifies that it needs to better identify and align the issues beyond
timing for background investigations. In part, the BIU implements its policy by the ongoing review of the progress of the
investigation and the final review of the applicant, through the summary of background investigation. While the
department identifies that officers are held to account under DGO 2.01, this is not sufficient, as the issue of ensuring
bias-free background investigations is key to ensuring ongoing diversity within the ranks of SFPD. Policy needs to be
implemented. In this regard, the department has measures in place - the evaluation of how they are being met is the
next step. Timing is relatively easy to review, however consistency of the investigative approach and hiring
recommendations needs to be part of the continuous review and improvement. Are investigators consistently
investigating and recommending all qualified candidates? The SFPD has demonstrated improvement in the development
of the tracker and oversight of the timing of case progression. However, the improvement focus should be on measuring
and ensuring consistency in background investigations to include identifying and addressing insufficiencies as well as
consistent excellence.
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Hillard Heintze File Review Recommendation # 87.1

Compliance Measures Status/Measure Met

1 Evidence of ongoing review and development of performance measures. vYes ONo ON/A

2 Specific performance measures identified and outlined in unit policy as

identified in the recommendation. VYes ONo ON/A

3 Implementation of performance measures. VYes ONo ON/A

4 Ongoing improvement loop. VvYes ONo [ON/A

Administrative Issues

Compliance Issues

Reference to policy as a means of compliance is not sufficient and should be avoided in future files. How policy is
implemented addresses compliance.
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